
Name
Case No
Nationality
Place e: Date of Birth
Last Permanent Address
Occupation

Languages
Education Standard
Political adherence

KK??11
.;‘g

SEC= t)'	 ‘e.fr'Q 	 •

C',4_,CYCAF1Z

Copy No:- 24

21 Jun 45 

INTERROGATION REPORT 

on.

HalUZZI Va/erio 

SECTION I

RECLAISIVIE0 ANO 1111EASIO NY
CENTRAL 1 . 111ELLIGEtti ARMY
5 011110EINETN-00SEXENO ION Mg

.11A11 VAN CO 11116.!1 OC1411111 ACT
RATE 2000

1. Personal Details

BENUZZI Valerio
208
Italian (Austrian, previous to 1919)
TRENTO 30 Nov 1892
AIbergo MILANO, MUIAN
Journalist (in actual fact, professional
agent)
Italian, GenuutandFrenah; some English.
University
Member of Fascist Party. Present
political adherence undetermixed, but.
subject has probably acted throughout
from self interest.

2. Description

Height	 : 1.88m
Build	 : Heavy, powerful
Hair	 : Black
Eyes	 Brawn
Features : Heavy

3. Subject's Relations

Born: 1848 in AUSTRIA (died 1933).
Profession: Engineer.

Giovanna (Johanna) Born: 1856 (9) in AUSTRIA (died 1915).
HOLZGAEXNER

Dorn: ELOSTERLE (AUSTRIA) 1883,
Profession: Dr. of Law. Employed in

Directorate of State Rly.
Last known address: TRIESTE, recently

transferred to VERONA.

Father	 :

Mother

Brother : Giovanni (Johann)

Sisters : Prima; m4 EOCH Born: VIENNA 1879. Widow.
Not heard of for many years

Claudia;m. REICKEL Born: RIVA DI TIMM 1884.
Last known addresz: VIENNA. No

counwmacation for
a long time.

Wife	 : Carlotta nee
BRIGOLA

Born: 1862.
Address: Not known.
Married Subject: 1919. Separated 1927

since when no communica-
tion,
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Children ; Nona.

4. DOcuments
•

(a) Cheque for 20,000 lire on Banco Arlibrosi•.n, MILAN, payable to
BARDELLI, dated 21 Feb 45.

(b) Cheque for 25,000 lire on Banos. Nazionalc del Luvoro, MILAN,
payable to COPPOLA, dated 30 Jan 45.

CheTie for 5,0100 lire on Bence Commerciale Italiana, MILAN,
payable to ANGEL MOM, dated 14 Feb 45.

(d) Cheque for 50,000 lire on Ban= Commerciale Italiana, MILAN,
payable to RAtOINELLI, dated 13 Feb 45.

Two cheques each for 10,000 lire on Bence Popolare di Milano,
MONZA, payable to AONTRASIO dated 29 Nov 44-

Cheque for 25,000 lire on Bence Popolare di Milano, MILAN,
payable to SCOBBI, dated 7 Feb 45.

5. Early History_

1899/1904
1904/8
1908/10
1910/13
1913

1915

Elementary School, VILINA.
Secondary School, VIENNA.
Secondary School, ROVERETO.
FLORENCE University. Faculty of Philosophy.
Interrupted Atudies awing to mother's illness and went to
TRIESTE 'obese he remained.
Called up for service in Austrian Army. Sent to serve in
the interior on account of Italian origin.

With Austrian Censordhja

6. In Aug 1915, subject was posted to the Censorship in VIENNA with the
rank of officer-cadet. In Dec of the same year, he was placed in Abt'M
which was concerned with the censorshi : , of the correspondence of PA in
Austrian hands. Considerable order of battle information was obtained
from this source, in particular by forging additions to PA's letters
addressed to military locations: in these additions the addresaee was
asked to say whore he was and to give other information likely to be
of use to the Austrians, and this met with considerable success.
Subject had not long been in this department before he succeeded in
informing the Italians of the situation by moans of an acquaintance
(name forgotten) who was in possession of a Greek passport and Who was
travelling to ITAIY. Subsequently, the Italian Censorship tightened up
its methods. Subject claims that he was inspired to do this by patriotic
feelings towards ITALY and that his career started with this period.

7. Early in 1916, subject met the Commercial Attache at the Roumanian
Eebassy called CANDIANI, who introduced 	 to the Roumanian Military
Attache, STIRCER Traiano. STIRCER agreed to pees to the Italian
Military Attache in ROUMANIA information received from sUbject. Subject
furnished through this Channel a copy of the Austrian Order of Battle of
the Italian Army and also news of the attack on TRENTO planned by the
Austrians. He was dismissed from the Censorship in Jul 1916, probably
because his aotivitics were suspected, and ho was sent back to the
military depot at LAMBACH. He pleaded that he was unfit for combatant
duties and he remained at the depot, visiting VIENNA from time to time
on escort duties and on leave; on these occasion, he continued to
maintain contact with STIRCE:: to whom he passed information on troop
movements, etc., which he had been able to pick up.
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8.	 In Aug 1916, STIRCER told subject that ROUMANIA was about to declare
war on AUSPRIA and he told subject to make contact with ANINAT, Counsellor
at the Chilean Legation, and with Alan Lindsay BRIGGS, U4. Military
Attache, saying that these two would arrange for information to bo passed
on to ITALY. Subject continued to supply information as before to
ANINAT until his temporary departure from VIENIA in Dec; subject then
made contact with BRIGGS.

Imprisonment: contact with OUCH underground movement 

9.	 At beg 1917, AIOISI of the Italian 1.3. sent an Argentinian of German
origin called FORT VON DEHEIDE to VIENNA with the sum of 50,000 lire to
giye to subject for his work. Subject refused to accept payment until
after the war, whereupon VON 1]EHEIDE denounced subject to the Austrian
authorities and spent the 50,000 lire on himself together with 20,000
lire reward for the denunciation. As the result of this, sUbjeot was
arrested on 7 Feb 1917 and placed in gaol. During his imprisonment,
subject met certain numbers of the Czech underground movement. Subjoct
was released in Sep 1917 as there was no evidence for a trihl'and he
returned to LAMBACIL Ho resumed his contact with ANINAT who had returned
to VIENNA and he also made contact with =bora of  the Czech underground. .
movement including ruDFAC, VEVE:aa, STEPANEK and B I KKrIPT who were working
for Czech independence. The courier for the movement was GOMEZ of the
Brazilian- Legation and, at this time, during GONEZ's absence, subject
was able to furnish them with an introduction to AN]HAT.

10. On 22 Dec 1917, subject was again arrested together with his father,
due to a denunciation by one of STIRMR's agents whom subject had met in
prison and with whom he had discussed future plans. Subject remained
imprisoned until 3 Nov 1918 when he was released owing to the impending
capitulation of AUSTRIA and before proceedings had, been taken against him.
His father was released at the same time. On regaining his freedom,
subject went first to PRAGUE where he act his former friends of the Czech
organisation. Brin1R-aT had been appointed head of the newly formed
Czech Police and, out of.recognition for subject's services, he furnished
subject with a Czech passport. About end Nov 1918, sObjeot returned
to TRIESTE, in order to obtain payment from the Italian authorities for
his services during the war; he encountered great opposition.

11. While at TRIESTE, subject met a Col FIHZI of the 'TEO Dept (Inform-
azioni Territori Occupati) of the Italian Foreign Office at ABBAZIA, and
who was also OC "I" Office of the Italian VI Army. FINZI sent sUbjeat
on three occasions to ZAGREB to observe political currents in CROATIA.
On the first two occasions, subject achieved nothing but on the third
visit he met MACEK and PYLVAIETZ through an acquaintance in the Czech
Legation. A secret partial plebiscite was held demanding the setting
up of an independent Croat State with tho help of ITALY and subject was
asked to report this to the Italians and to ask them to cater CROATIA
by way of FIUME. Subject dilly reported this on his return but the matter
was &wiped, subject believes, at the instance of the Italian Foreign
Minister, SONRINI. Subject was paid by FINZI for those expeditions.
Besides wanting to be pain for his work during the war, subject was
anxious to be given official employment In intelligence work.

12. Some time in 1919, subject travelled to ROUMANIA in order to obtain
proofs of his work during the war which he obtained from the Italian
Military Attache at DUCHAIEST, Gen MEIGO. Subject then returned to
ITAL: and presented the proofs to the authorities. Still during 1919,
subject left TRIESTE and went to AUSTRIA where he lived for two years
during which he did not interest himself in espionage. In Dec 1921,
subject visited ROME where, after a severe struggle, he succeeded in
obtaining 40,000 (forty thousand) lire' from Col TROLANI of the War
Ministry fDr his services during the war - TROIANI made subject sign a



tAN

OPISECHET 

CSDIC/CMF/Z 165 

receipt for 45,000 lire, retaining the extra 5,000 lire for his ova
Use as subject supposes. After this, mibject again returned to VIMINA
where he remained as before for another stretch. In Oct 1922, subject
paid another visit to ROAM to obtain payment from the Ministry of Marine
for services rendered to that Ministry during the war. After 8 or 9
months' struggle with AIOISI and Capt BELLAVITA of the . ainistry of
Marine, subject eventually received 25,000 lire after he had gone to
the length of obtaining an interview with MUSSOLINI on this account
(subject's only interview with the DUCE). In Aug 1923, subject returned
to AUSTRIA. During the year, he wrote some articles for the paper
"Voce di GORIZIA".

"Journalistic" activities 

13. In the spring of 1924., subject made up his mind to settle in ITALY*
- and he vent to ROME. Here he met Baron VALENTINO, Head of the Press

rept of the Foreign Office, who gave him the job of reporting on foreign
politico-diplomatic opinion of Italian domestic policy for which subject
was paid 1,000 lire a month. In the spring of 1926, VALL'ITOO introduced
subject to Larry ALS of the "ciacAck TRIBUNE" who paid subject 2,000 lire
a month, his duties being to keep the "CHICAGO TRIBUNE" Correspondent au
courant with Italian domestic affairs. Subject was at this time also
acting as correspondent for "AUPROZBITUNG", an Italian paper printed in
German at BOLZAND and inspired.bytho Italian. Govt. In addition, subject
was given 1,000 lire a month by the Press Office of the Ministry of the
Interior for confidential reports.

14. Subject happened to mention one day in front of IAVIOOLI, the Vice
Head of the Press Office in the Ministry of the Interior (who, unknown

- to subject, was an informer of SIM CS) that FAHMACCI's brother had
criticised mussum. Later the same day, subject was told by IAVICOLI
that he was to produce a written statement to that effect which ho did.
This, he claims, contributed to FAAINA(XI's temporary fall from favour.
As the result of this, subject was summoned by the head of the Felice,
CRISP° MONCADA, who proposed that subject act as his informer on-political

• matters at 1,000 lire a month. Two months after this, CRISP° MONCADA
lost his post as the result of LUCMTTO's attempt on MUSSOLINI and he.
was replaced by BOCCHINI in Sep 1926, for whom subject continued to work.

	

, 15.	 In roe 1926, subject learned from a woman acquaintance, EVANGELISTI
Virginia (later uarried to a man called CARLOTTI), whom he had mat
through a Communist called MENDOLA, that BALBO and his friends were
hatching a plot to depose the King. Subject informed BOCCHINI and it
was agreed to pay the woman 1,000 lire a day to continue to supply informa-

• tion. Subject also mentioned the matter to IANICOLI who informed SIR
CS but did not say that BOCCH1N1 hod been informed. At the soma tine,

.MENEOLA, who had also learned of the matter through EVANGELISTI, was
arrested and told his interrogators everything. Subject's mistress at
that time,POPESCHI-MONTI Dice, had kopt a diary in which she referred to
the plot and this diary was stolen at the same time by a Freemason acquaint-
ance of hers who gave it to Gen. CrITADINI,. ADC to the King. Since the
Fascist Ministers had been waiting on events, and since the matter came
to the King's ears by unorthodox channels, there was a political upheaval
in the course of which subject was arrested on 8 Dec. Ho was released on
the following day but was re-arrested on 16 roc and was informed that he
was sentenced to 5 years "Confino". He was, however, released again the
same evening and he later learned that this was due to the intervention

•of the King. Subject had, during this time, kept the 4 CEICAGO TAIDUNE-
informed:Of what was happening and, since its correspondent's cables based
on subject's information incurred the displeasure of the Italian Govt,
subject was dismissed frma his job with the paper. -

	

16.	 With subject's release from prison, however, his misfortunes were not
at an end and he was sentenced to 2 years "Ammonizione Politica" and ex-



- 5 -	 WAIILEMK•	

csinc/aiplz

relied from the Fascist Party. (4ote: it is thought likely that subject's
account of this episode is euphemistic insofar as regards the part played
by himself in it). Subject heard nothing from DOCOHINI but remainerlon
terms of friendship with POPBSCHI-MONTI (oho later on became BOCCH1NI's
mistress as wall as his informer). On 27 Aar 1927, subject was summoned
by BOOCKNI and told that he was pardoned and that an indemnity of 500
lire a week would be paid to him. In Jun of the some year, BOOCHINI
suggested to subject that in view of past events it would be better if
he went abroad for awhile since he /1r-drawly enemies in the Party.
Subject accordingly went to VIENNA. 	 •

Work in VIENNA

17.	 While in ROME subject had got to know Josip SEAM, Hungarian Press
Attache in ROME who was in touch with all the various subversive foreign
elements in ROME. SZACK gave subject an introduction to Baron VON
WEISNM (since dead in a German concentration camp) who was head of the
Press Office in VIENNA and vies in contact with the Archduke OTTO; VON
NEISNAR was also intriguing for a united state to consist of AUSTRIA,
HUNGARY and WOATIA under the HAPSBURGS, and was in contact in this
connection with PETOIC (representing Ante PAVELIC), and also indirectly
with ...iARKOTIC and Col PERCEVIC. Subject was therefore well placed on
arrival in VIENNA to report to BOCCHINI, as he had been asked, on current
political intrigues in VIENNA. Subject also got to knew something of
the activities of the Heimwehr aniMONREALE's connection with it.
Subject sent periodical reports on these matters to mann through
MODRINI and Major COZZI (MVSN - later a friend of UHLER). During this
period in VIENNA, subject met Maria TUPY who later became his mistress
andwho now passes as his wife.

Work for Fascist Party 

18. By Feb 1927, subject's reports had become so wide in their scope that
he was put into touchwith the Italian Foreign Office by BOOMINI and he
was recalled to ROME, ',dare he continued his work for DOMINI. Subject
also got into touch with Gen.	 TANA, formerly of SIN, Who was now the
head of the UPI 0,1V3li Intelligence Organisation) to whom he was asked to
report on the integrity of banking officials, deputies, etc., and on 	 •
rumours likely to interest the Govt. In 1931, subject was reinstated in
the Fascist Party and, towards the end of that year, FONTANA obtained
for subject the post of political adviser to GIORDANI, Head of the
Govt (parastatale) Assurance Institute, for which subject was paid 3,000
lire a month. In 1932 or 1933, subject met CIARO who was then Head of
the Govt Press Office and who asked subject to writo up for him and for
STAR= and also Maj Lucazio of the Press and Propaganda Ministry, public
reactions to speeches by members of.the Govt and for this sUbjeot was paid .
1,500 lire a month. Subject was now doing well for himself.

19. In 1934, subject met Col PCIIE, Head of SIN (Z and they became on
very friendly terms. PIECHE took subject on officially as a mother of
the CS, his duties being to report to PIECEE on the German situation in
the AIM ADIGE and Austrian Nazis in ROME. (PIECHE's 2ndi/c, EMANUELE,
did not however like subject and, in 1936, when PIECHE was promoted General
and went to SPAIN, leaving EMANUELE to take his place, EMANUELE ceased to

-employ subject). It was during 1936 that subject assorts he offered his
s(xvices to the British I.S. through the AMbassador's wife (sic), receiving,
however, no reply.

Arrest and banishment 

20. Subject wrote up a report on BUONACCORSI, Italian Consul in the
BALURIC Islands incorporating information which subject reoeived from
Judge FRANCO who had it from a priest to the effect that BUONACCORSI had
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had a nuMber of Spanish Govt supporters murdered and had sent a quantity
of looted jewellery to ITALY by aeroplane. Since BUONACCOESI, unknown .
to subject, happened to be CIANO's friend, CLAM had subject arrested.
Subject 'a position was also compromised at the same time because he
had mentioned to FARINOCI (whom he had recently been cultivating so
as to "safeguard hie position with the Fascist Party) that rumours were .
current that CIANO was holding extravagant parties at his villa.
FARINACCI reported this to CIANO. The result of this was that subject -
was condemned to 5 years' "confine" on 22' Jun 37. Subject spent his
first year of confinement in the TREMITI Islands, followed by three
years at PALE= and one year at NAPLES.

21.	 During his last year of "confine" at NAPLES, subject renewed his
friendship with PIECHE who had by now been transferred there, as OC,
CC.FT4 and he furnished PIECHE with information of a local nature, through
Major COCCO who WOW head of the cc.al. CE detachment. Observing the
upward trend of prices of jewellery and precious stones, decided to
attempt a financial coup since he was badly in need of funds by this time.
He therefore arranged with a NAPLES jeweller known to his a Signora
D'ANGELO, to borrow from her 400,000 lire with which to buy jewellery,
undertaking to repay her in a year's time. Sdbject obtained permission
to visit MILAN for a week and during this visit he purchased jewellery
for about 200,000 lire and spent about another 100,000 lire halving a
good time. Back in NAPLES, he bought more jewellery. Subject else
during 1941 sold some material to the GAF on which he made a profit of
25,000 lire.

22. When his 'Confine ran out in 1942, subject found that instead of
being released he was sent on the reommendation of COCCO to live in

• restricted residence at EMMA. This badly upset his plans but he
managed to get permission to visit NAPLES at end Jul 42, when he pawned

. the jewellery for some 77,000 lire (Banco di Pogno di Napoli, Fratelli
BOVE) and he handed the pawn tickets to Signora D'ANGELO whom he persuaded
to renew the loan for another year. subject also bought 7 pictures for
35,000 (thirty-five thousand) lire from GAMIULO, a picture shop in NAPLES.
(Note: Subject's explanation of this deal is considered so far unsatisfact-
ory).

Connections with German Consulate

23. In Dee 42, subject managed to obtain permissioa to return to NAPLES
to remain there and he was taken on as a SIN CS informant by 00000 at
1,000 lire a month. SUbject immediately set about trying to regularise
the position of his mistress, Maria TUPY, who was living at NAPLES but,
being of Austrian nationality, was having difficulty with the German
authorities. Subject called at the German Consulate where ha met the •
Consul AI and the Chancellor OISIMNIL To keep the matter of his
wife's position open, subject started bogus negotiations with a lawyer
to divorce his first wife and promised to marry TUPY. As the result of
repeated calls at the Consulate in this connection, subject got to know
the Consul, the Chancellor and other meMbers of the staff well. Ho
undertook to change on the black market the Swiss francs which certain
Consulate officials obtained through their bank in NAPLES. Later, he
started doing ,the same for the Consul. Subject gave half the black market
he exchanged to the Consul and employees of the Consulate and kept the
rest for himself without any questions being asked. He states he informed
COCCO of this and he was instructed to use his connection with the Consul-
ate as a source of information on tho Germans for SIM and that his black
market activities would be overlooked.

24. E/entually, early in 1943, MEI left and subject sold him a diamond
pin and a 5 ot sapphire for 400,000 lire. Just before he left, MEI got
subject to change a block of 18,000 Swiss francs for him on which subject
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was able to make a profit for himself of about 15 lire per franc. In
Apr 43, therefore, subject was able to pay off his debt to Signora D'ANT61.0
and from now on his finances wore so assured that he renounced his salary .
from sm. (Subject states that he still owes D'ANWID the interest on
the money for tuv years but on the other hand he left with her a gold
cigarette case weighing 180 grammes). M81 'splace was taken by WURSTER
with wham subject became on equally friendly terms and he continued his
exchange transactions for the Consulate which brought him in an average
monthly profit of some 80,000 lire. Subject was not such disturbed, there-
fore, when CHIERICI, a friend of BALDO, and who succeeded BOCCHIMI as Head
of the Police, took sway the indemnity allowed to subject after his first
arrest in 1926. Subject also made a profit of 25,000 lire at this time
by walling material to the GAF.

.25.	 About May or Jun 43, subject met It WOEHLER of Abwthr IA who was
passing through and was introduced tp subject by WURSTER. WOEHLER,
subject and ORTMANN had dinner together at the Albergo VITTORIA and .
WOEHLER told subject that the GIS was badly in need of information,
especially from N. AFRICA. He strongly criticised Admiral CANARIS and
the unsatisfactory way in which the Mediterranean espionage network was
being run. He said that in N. AFRICA the Abwehr had only one agent
between CASABLANCA and TUNISIA and he was in constant danger. Ways and
means of introducing further agents were discussed as a matter of
conversational interest.

26. In Jul 43 after the fall of Fascism, subject was told by COCCO to
intensify his efforts to obtain information from the German Consulate.
About this tine, sdblect was told by an agent of SIM CS that subject
had been denounced by a woman to Col HEIDSCHUCH of Abwehr . III as having
too much influence in the German Consulate; subject thinks, but claims
that he is not sure, that the denunciation came from a woman called
HASSUNGER who, in order to obtain Italian nationality, married an
Italian called TANGARI and was an informer of the NAPL6d Fol4endarmerie.

27. .	 On 6 Aug 43, sub&ot was freed .from all restrictions. On 6 Sop,
srbject's mistress went to ROME to change some money and got caught there

the armistice. On 8 Sep, WURSTER left to go to E. (Before he
departed, he made over to subject as security for a debt of 100,000 lire,
a house belonging to him at ANGUILLARA SABAZIA). On 9 Sep, the CE	 -
Section of the OC.RR, together with COCCO went into hiding but were soon
arrested by the Germans. Major CA.TTAIMO of tho CC.RR came to subject
and asked him to use his influence with the Germans to help the arrested
Carabinieri. Subject, though much perturbed lest the CE files with all
his reports on the German Consulate had fallen into German hands, called
on the German Town Major, Major SCHOLTZ, and asked to soe COCCO; he was
put into touch with the Ic officer Lt BACHHOVEN (spelling 7) who allowed
subject to talk to COCCO who was under arrest with the other members of
the SIM CS detachment. COCCO told subject that all the files had been
burned. Subject then interceded for the detachment and it was agreed
to release them, COCCO being told to report to the CC.RR HQ in ROME.

Contact  with HAT'..D• TER and KAPPLER

28. On 22 Sep, subject left NAPLES and went to ROME whore he found that
WURSTER was acting for the Ambassador, RAI-M, who had gone north when the
armistice was announced. Subject stayed at the AIbergo MAESTOSO and soon
after his arrival WURSTER asked subject to dinner at the AMBASCIATORI.
After dinner subject was introduced to ObersturMbannfuehrer KAPPLER of
the ROME EMbassy and to Brigadefuchrer HARSTER who had just come from
HOLLAND to take up the position of B.d.S., newly created as the result
of the armistice. Both were very friendly to subject who claims that
this must have been on account of the good opinion WURSTER had of him.
At about 2000 honrs PAVOLJNI and BUFFARINI-GUIDI arrived to discuss the
formation of the new Fascist Govt.
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During Oct aridNov, subject saw KAPPLER about six times; on two of
. these occasions iCAPPLER naked subject to dinner at the Albergo MAEST060

and at other times subject saw him at the Embassy where subject also made
' the acquaintance of Stunnbannfuehrer HASee, Hauptsturmfuehrer PitE&BKE

• -•	 and Dr. MA.UR. Subject also met GRASSI Attilio at the EMbassy. On one
of these occasions, desiring to get on the right side of the Fascist Party,
subject asked KAPPLLR to intercede for him with BUFFARM-GUIDI in order

e r - • that the blots on subject's Fascist Party copybook might be erased.
Subject saw BUFFARLel-GUIDI later who sent him to TAMBURRL1I, Head of

.	 the Police, who offered to take subject on as an official member of the
OVRA (now called Ispettorati Specieli) but subject refused. Subject also

e called on his own account on Guido LEO, whom he already knew, and
suggested tactfully that it might be a good thing if an eye were kept on
German activities and intentions but LETO seemed alarmed at the suggestion
and put him off.	 . •

••• • . Contact's with Roman Churoh	 eei

e*: 30.	 During this period, subject met GAMBARIELLA who was Clerical
Representative at the Assurance Institute and whom subject had known

• previously. This gave subject the idea of suggesting to KAPPLER that
the Germans would need a clerical contact since, whatever happened, they
would have need of the Catholic Church. KAITrell agreed and, accordingly,
subject introduced GLMBAIIIELLA to Konza4 The theme of German need of
Catholic support, however the war went, was henceforth sedulously developed
by seb,ect, who made it the main plank in his political platform both in
ROME and, later, in MILAN. In the meantime, subject's mistress grew
anxious lest KAPPLER find out that she was Austrian and not married to
subject and she agitated to leave ROM. Subject did not oppose heree;

• "f,"A	 and he wont to MILO for a short visit early in Dec.

• 31;.•	 On his return, sdbject, having made up his mind to settle in MILAN,
approached GAeBARTELLf, asking him to give him an introduction to someone

'	 of importance in the Church and CAIMARDELLA gave subject a letter to Don
BICCHURAI, Cardinal eateitTees representative in MILAN. About this time, 	 •
too, KLPPL111 one day asked subject whether he would stay behind with a 	 -ee.
W/T set in ROME after its occupation by the Allies aad he offered subject 	 eeee
-1,000,000 lire to do so. Subject asked for 24 hours to think it overeeee e'ecee-.ie	 and then refused, 'saying that he was going to live in MILAN. Subject • eeeeasked KAPPLLR for an introduction to the SS in MILAN and he gave subject
a letter to (then) Obersturmbannfuehrer RAUFF. 	 -eeee

•• •ee.f.e
Connection with KLAPS	 • ,;04-

-
32. While in ROME, subject met . Rolf Guenther beffeeR (son of the actress

who was GOEBBELS' mistress) who said that he was in contact with Father
O'FLAINCY in the VATICAN but subject did not meet O'FleaDeeel. Also
before leaving finally for boa" subject again met ROMER who introduced
him to Korv. Kpt. hIAPS (alias KLEIN). Subject met ZAPS several times
and he introduced Giovanni ROTA to KLAPS and WOEHLER.. ROTA was a salvage
contractor and manager to Baren LEVINSKI, German LO at the Republican
Ministry of Marine. Subject had net ROTA in the bar of the Grand Betel
in ROME when subject first arrived from NAPLES. KLAPS asked ROTA to
find him some WA operators who were to be left behind in RCM and ROTA
suggested a certain Ingegnere CAPALDI (connected with salvage) who had
been repatriated fnee Italian East AFRICA on health grounds after serving
under the British there. Subject was later told in MILAN by XIAPS that

're4	 he had left CeeAIBI in e0WX with a W/T set and 500,000 (five hundred thous-
and) or 1,000,000 (olua million) lire, though subject gathered that the
matter had gone eemehew astray but that nevertheless CkPALDI had kept the
money and the set. (Comment: CAPALBI was errested in ROME in Oct 44).

33. One day at the EXCELSIOR, subject met a former aceuaintance, the Dike
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of AQUARA, to whom he had been introduced in the first plaza by Dan
ORLANDO of BENEVENTO while at NAPLES and who was a great friend of Gen
RAMKE, OC 2 Para Div. D'AqUARA. (see Cid PBO report of 12 Nov 44, Case
No. BSN 768 SV) asked subject if he knew anyone who could. take a letter
to his servants at his property at CASTEL MELIZZANO which was then near
the battle zone. Subject arranged with a Capt KAUTSCH, a GAF Paymaster
first met in NAPLES who made frequent visits to the VOLTURNO front, tu .
take the letter which D'AQUARA gave sealed to subject (about Oct 43).
Subject states that he saw D'AQUARA about five times in ROME. Subject
stoutly maintains that his contact with D'AWARA in ROME was as given
above and that he has never heard of KAMM:ER or of anyone who might fit
the description. Sub jeot states that KAUTalti was soon afterwards condemned
to death for cowardice and, after spending a short time in REGINA COELI,
was sent to MUNICH.

34.	 Before finally leaving for MILAN, subject had several interviews with
BUFFARINI-GUIDI with a view to obtaining compensation for his "confine'.
It was only seven months later, however, that he was finally given
2,030,000 (two million) lire as compensation by the Republican Fascist
Govt..

.35.	 In Dec 43, subject finally left ROME for MILAN. On the woy he called
at LA SPEZIA where he saw WOEHLER and ZAPS. He trakwith him "all his
jewels and rings and the things he had bought for the trip" which he
reckoned to be worth about 400,000 lire and mow values at about six million
lire.

Arrival in MILAN and contact with BICCHIERAI

36.

	

	 In Dec 43, soon after his arrival in MILAN, subject went to call on
Don BICCHIERAI with the letter of introduction from GAMAnDELLA. The
first contacts with BICCBIERAI were conducted cautiously by both aides;
BICCHMIAI was not sure of subject and subject hinted in vague terms of
his intention to gain the confidenca of the Germans and the Pascists in
the interests of the Church and he offered to act as a kind of go-between
or liaison between the Germans and the Church. A ramber of further 	 .
meetings occurred at which the mattersas further discussed and each side
came a little more into the open. Subject proposed that he approach RAUFF
in the interests of the Church and with the agreement of the CLNAI, should
introduce BICCHIERAI to RAUFF when he had prepared the ground. To this
BICCHIERAI agreed.

First meeting with RAUFF 

37. In the meantime, subject took KAPPLER's letter to RAUFF and introduced
himself. Subject who was well received, proceeded to develop the theme
he had propounded to KAPPLER, namely that the Germans would always have
need of the support of the Catholic Church whatever the circumstances; he
mentioned his acquaintance with BICCHILRAI and suggested that RAUFF and
BICCHIERAI should meet through his good offices. RAUFF agreed to this
and, on 27 Dec 43, subject introduced BICCHIERAI to RAUFF.

38. Since subject had quickly gained RAUFF's confidence, he began at
BICCHIERAI's instance to set about interesting himself in the cases of
Italians who had been _arrested by the Germans, particularly in regard to
Jews and priests. In Dec 45, subject won able, he claims, to obtain the
release of Prince Muzio SPADAFORA and others of the aircraft firm of
Fratelli AGUSTA by bribing a Judge of the Military Tribunal called TIPP
with 300,000 lire. As recognition for this, subject received a present
from the firm of 800,000 lire. Subject claims that, in accord with
BICCBIERAI, his aims were to gain the confidence of the Germans and
penetrate their organisation on behalf of the Church, the result of which
it was intended should be an attempt at mitigating t1 severity of the
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of AQUARA, to whom he had been introduced in the first place by Dan
ORLAaTO of DUEVE1TO while at NAPLES and who was a great friend of Gen
RAMM, CC 2 Itra Div. D°A.XARA (see CIC PBS report of 12 Nov 414, Case
No. B.911 768 $y) asked subject if he knma anyone who could take a letter
to his servants at his property at CASTEL NELIZZANO which was then near
the battle zone. Subject arranged with a Capt KAUTSCH, a GAF Paymaster
first not in NAPLES who made frequent visits to the VOLTURNO front, to.
take the letter which D'AQUARA gave sealed to subject (about Oct 43).
Subject states that he sae D'AOARA about five times in ROME. Subject
stoutly maintains that his contact with D'AQUARA in ROME was as given
above and that he has never heard of KALINETEI: or of anyone who might fit
the description. Subject states that KAUTSCH was soon afterwards condemned
to death for cowardice and, after spending a short time in REGINA COELI,
was sent to MUNICH.

34.	 Before finally leaving for MILAN, subject had several interviews with
BUFFJIRITU-GUIDI with a view to obtaining compensation for his "confine.
It was only seven months later, team:vex., that he was finally given
2,000,000 (two million) lire as wraponscuLn by the Republican Fascist
Govt.

35.	 In Dec 43, subject finally left ROME for MEAN. On the way he called
at LA SIMIA where he saw WODHLEE and MAPS. He took with him "all his
jewels and rings and the things he had bought for the trip" which he
reckoned to be worth about 400,000 lire and now values at about sir million
lire.

Arrival in MILAN and contact with BICKILMAI

36. In Dec 43, soon after his arrival in MILAN, subject went to call on
Don BICCHU,RAI with the letter of introduction from GrAlikUELLA. The
first contacts with HICCHIERAI were conducted cautiously by both sides;
BICCHE.RAI was not sure of subject and subject hinted in vague terms of
his intention to gain the confidence of the Germans and the Fascists in
the interests of the allEM,11 and he offered to act as a kind of go-between
or liaison between the Germans and the Church. A nudher of further	 -
meetings occurred at which the rartterjae further discussed and each side
came a little more into the open. Subject proposed that he approach RAUFF
in the interests of the Church and with the agreement of the CLNAI, :Should
introduce BICKTIERAI to EAUFF when he had prepared the ground. To this
BICCH1ERAI agreed.

First meeting with RAUFF 

37. In the meantime, subject took KAPPLER's letter to RAUFF and introduced
himself. Subject who was well received, proceeded to develop the theme
he had propounded to IUTPLER, namely that the Germans would always have
need of the support of the Catholic Church whatever the circumstanoes he
mentioned his acquaintance with BICCHILRAI and suggested that RAUFF and
BICOLIERAI should raeet through his good offices. RAUFF agreed to this
and, on 27 Dec 45, subject introduced BICCHTERAI to RAUFF.

38. Since subject had quickly gained RAUFF I s confidence, he began at
BICCHIBEAI's instance to set about interesting himself in the cases of
Italians who had bean arrested by the Germans, particularly in regard to
Jews and priests. In Dec 43, subject was able, he claims, to Obtain the
release of Prince Muzio SPADAFOEA and others of the aircraft firm of
Fratelli AGUSTA by bribing a Judge of the Military Tribunal called TIPP
with 300,000 lire. As recognition for this, subject received a present
from the firm of 800,000 lire.	 Subject claims that, in accord with
BICCEIERAI, his aims were to gain the confidence of the Germans and
penetrate their organisation on behalf of the Church, the result of Which
it was intended should be an attempt at mitigating the severity of the
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German occupation and, through the Germans, restraining the Fascist
Govt. It was at a later date (subject cannot remember when) that he
learned that SIOCHIKAI was in contact with the CLNAI on instructions
from Cardinal SCHUSTER.

39. About 7 Jan 44, after preliminary discussions at the instance of'
BICCHIERAI, a meeting was arranged to take place between BIOI1=04
RAUFF, RAHN, PRINZING and Gen WOLFF at tho German Embassy at FASANO,
the idea being that BICCSIERAI should put forward a proposal that the
N. Italian Govt. should be reorgonised on non-political lines and,
whilst the various political parties should be recognised as far as
possible, the Fascist Party should be placed on an equal footing with the
other recognised parties. SUbject Has present at the meeting as inter- .
preter to RAUFF (althoueIRAUIT spoke Italian wellenough not to need ono).
This was the only time object saw Gen W0LF2 who listened to the'proceed-
ings but said nothing throughout. In developing his theme, which was
more in the nature of a lecture, RAHN traced the history of the war; he
said that at one time GERMANY had to choose between FRANCE and ITALY and
that the friendship of FRAXE mould have been won after the conversations
between HITLER and PETAIN at MONTOIRE had it not been for a misplaced
article by GAIDA in the "GIORNALE WITAIIA". He wont on to say that the
Germans could not now allow any change of status in the Fascist Party in
ITALY since it would be bad propaganda from the German point of view.

40. My Jan 44., object and kAUFF were on very friendly terms and RAUFF
asked subject to act as his pwlitdcal adviser on Italian affairs: he
asked subject in particular to keep him informedsbout currents of
thought in Fascist Rel:Iblican Government circles where object's principal
contacts were BUFF...UM-a-GUM and TAMBURINI.. Subject was making frequent
journeys to MADERNO at this time to see BUFFARLII-GUIDI in order to try
and obtain the compensation for his "Confine. At this time, too,
object began to interest himself in obtaining the release of certain
priests who had been imprisoned by the Germans.

41. Towards the end of Jan, object met HARSTE.": for the second time when
both were invited to dinner by RAUFF. A. change in the Fascist Government
had been planned by the Germano and; during the evening, HARMER put
through a telephone call to Goa. WOLFF, telling him that everything was
in hand, that BUFFARINI-CUIDI and TAMBURINI had been detained at the
German ibbassy, that PAVOL1NI was to be replaced by BALLISTI from BRESCIA,
BARRACU fwns to be Minister of the Interior and SANTAMARIA, Questore of
MILAN and a protege of RAUF2, was to be Chierof Police. 48 hours later,
however, subject learned that the Whole affair had been vetoed by MUSSOLINI
who did not approve and who advanced as the pretext for his veto that the
project had already been mado publio in the Swiss Press.

Trouble over ZOLIOMY

About this time the trial of Count CIANO took place, followed soon
afterwards by the flight of Edda CIANO to SW1TZERLANDwith rumours that
she had taken important documents with her. This brought subject into
contact again with a Hungarian acquaintance called ZOLYOMY, whom object
had first met in NAPLES as an informer of SIN. Subject introduced him
to RADFF since he appeared dowa and out and RAUFF employed him to try and
Obtain information from Edda CIANO's lover Count PUCCI who was then In
prison.	 (See also under Section II). Not long after this, subject was
asked by a socialist meMber of the Pablica Sicurozza of his acquaintance,
BE GINWMO Leonardo, to meet a Communist friend of his, Avv. LENER.
Subject agreed to do so at BIOCHIERAI's house and when the meeting took
place LENER asked object details :bout ZOLYOMY who was posing as a
Communist and subject told What he 'clew, stating that he considered him
doubtful. About three weeks later object was summoned by RAUFF and
asked why he had received wma in his hotel and had given him information

'42.
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about ZOLYOMY who was a Gorman agent. Subject got himself out of the
difficulty by saying that he had been asked about ZOLYOMY by BICCILRAI
but RAUFF was not very satisfied; nevertheless the matter was dropped.
RAUFF, still later, told subject that he had had ZOLYOMY imprisoned for a
month for playing a double game, adding that this would make him ploy
straight in future.

43.	 In Feb 44, there began a series of dinners, arranged by subject
for the most part at the Alborg° OATULLO at SILMIONE, at which were present
HARSTER, BAUFF, BUFFARINI 7GUIDI and subject (who states that he usually
paid the bill of about 5,000 lire a tine). Those dinners took place
about once a month and continued until Oct 44. The party usually discussed
current police matters and politics.

44.	 From the beginning of 19144, subject planned to visit SWITZERLAND with
the intention, he claims, of making contact with representatives of the
Allies. RAUFF was not interested in SWITZFRLAND because the German
espionage service them, according to him, was run from BERLIN. . By a
long series of intrigues and manoeuvres with the Fascist Police, the SD,
German military authorities and the Swiss Consulate, subject at length
obtained a frontier pass for himself and for his "wife" and An obeug 44 44,
having enlarged upon the wonderful service he would be able to render
to the Germans and others once he were able to go to SWITZERIAM, obtained
RAUFF's consent. To the Swiss authorities, subject represented that he
could render great, help . to the jets through. the.Red , Cross ink'', ITALY by
being allowed adeess to SWITZEk:LAITD. Subject did not, limmnrer, actually
go to SWITZERLAND for the first time until Dec 44.

"Salary" from KLAPS 

From Feb 44, subject, having toldKIAPS of his plans to go to
SWITZERLAND, hinted that U.S. dollars 'would be useful in this regard and
that he could render useful service for MAPS in SUMMAND. As from
about Jan or Feb 44, MAPS gave subject en average of 300 a month which
subject then sold at a large profit on the black market without telling
anyone. Later SESSLER oontinued paying subject in dollars up till Feb 45.
(Subject claims that he "bought" the dollars from SESSLER at the official
rate of exchange, i, being understood by ms .orza that these dollars would
be useful to subject in SITITMLAND. Subject's account of all this is
very unsatisfactory and unconvincing).

Activities in SWITMLAO

Subject left for SWITM..r.I.1.1'D for the first tine on 11 Dec 44 and wont .
to the A1bergo FILAllA at LUGANO. He states that he was unaware that
Capt BIDEBECK was alsJ living at the Hotel. Subject saw Bianca BRICCHOTTO
and also the Bishop of LUGANO to whom he explained that he had cal-175-----"
discuss helping the Jews in N. ITALY by means of the Red Cross. Subject
also saw ' RANDE with whom ho discussed the position in laud'. Subject
also saw	 BIECIC and Major DE GASTON, On 13 Dec, subject vent to
GENEVA and put up at the Hotel de DERGUE3. Subject made an appointment
with SCHWARMBURG to whom subject had been recommended by the Swiss
Consul in MILAN as being interested in the Jewish question. Subject also
got into touch with the Italian Consul, General czaaL, Subject was
introduced by SCHWAaENBURG to Sally le)Tdi, Head of tho Swiss branch of
the American Joint Distribution Committee, and through her he not VAMBRA,
president of Jewish Italiil Committee. The main subject of all those
discussions seems to have been the possibilities of the exchange of Jews
interned in GEINANY and at BOLZANO and arrangements for sending them
comforts as well as to attempt to inpode the despatch of Jews to GERMANY.

47.	 Subject then went to StallE with the Italian Vice Consul,VERRI and his
secretary who had been in COOCO's section of SIM at NAPLES. With VERRI,

46 .
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subject called on Col DENARO—SW. representative in SWITZULAND, to whom
subject explained that he might be sent by the SD to SWITZERLAND with a
mission after the fall of MILAN and subject mentioned that he had been In
touch with the British in LUGANO. Subject also called on the Papal
Nuncio with a letter from Cardinal DnETTO. Subject was asked tu
interest himself in the case, among others, of Mario BALOGLIO but he
explained that this was impossible since ho had been taken to GERMANY
by PRIEM on the orders of HITLER. On 18 Dec, subject returned to
MILAN via LUGANO. From mid Jan, the tine of subject 'a second visit,
until the end of Feb 45, subject went to SWITZERLAND about five times
during which he discussed with various of the above-mentioned the possible
exchange of PATERSON and PAMII.

48. About beg Feb 45; ColENGE.T.'ilAar visited MILAN and summoned subject
for an interview. ENGELiARN INDS acoompanied by his assistant Copt RAZOR
and the interview took place in RAUFF's office with RAUFF present.
RAUFF explained in a few words what subject had been doing in 3WT2ZE2LA2D
(as seen by the Germans). V,NGEIAURUT then proceeded to discuss the
possibility 3f subject undertaking a mission on behalf of the Germans after
the fall of MILAN.

Peace feelers through the Church

49. In Jan 45, subject hoard from RAW of a secret meeting between 1:A.1-Di,
the German Ambassador and Cardinal scmusma to discuss the possibilities of.
making a separate peace with the Western Allies. This interview had
apparently been kept secret from the SD and nAHN had gone incognito to
MILAN where he had had, a neoting with Don COIMELLA, Clerical LO with the
Fascist Govt, and the German Consulate inMELAN, and had asked his to	 -
arrange a secret meeting with the Cardinal. The meeting duly took place,
RAHN entering and leaving the Cardinal's house by the back door, after
which RAHN had asked both the Cardinal and Don CORBELLA to give their word
of honour not to mention the meeting to anyone. RAUFF did not say how
he had got to know about it; ho told subject that this was the second such
meeting, the first having taken place between the Pope and WEIZSAECKER
some time before.

50. Also about the same time, subject heard from various priests of his
acquaintance that the Pope had sent secret instructions to the Cardinals
in N. ITALY to the effect that Communism would remain a social danger and
that it must continue to be fought by tho Church.

51. In Feb 45, the International Red Cross had arranged for the repatria-
tion of some 1,500 persons who had been displaced from the BREUIL area on
the Franco-Italian border. It had been agreed between RAUFF and Col BON
of the International Red Cross that the French refugees should travel to
FRANCE through SWITMRLAND. Subject heard it mentioned in the REGINA
that the SD intended infiltrating tic or three of their agents into the
party to be repatriated to FRANCE.

OYMMENTS

Subject might be described as a "political company promoter' (if
such an expression can be used), exploiter of situations for his awn
benefit and black market speculator: a man with high social ambitions
and few scruples. Ho has been an important OVRA informer. His
protestations that he was not have no value, since his position as an
informer of BOOK= (and also of SEA) place him in the highest order of
OVRA informers though tec hnically he may not have been on the strength
of that institution.	 long practice in such work (dating from the
last war) has made hia an export in giving indirect aluvrers, avoiain8
difficrlt questions andmaldng the beat of his case. It is very difficult
to get a straight answer out of him.

52.



53. As to his motives, it is interesting to compare the cage of subject
with that of Ugo (CSDIC/WF/Z 163). While the latter can with a good,
foundation of truth be said to have apparently acted throughout fr.:join
interest in his work and patriotism according to his lights and has not
benefited materially, the former case does not present any logical
development of loyalties except for devotion to the cause of BENUZZI.

Subject's finances are a tricky question and to get to the bottom
of than will require much checking and investigation: subject's own
version is regarded with great suspicion.

54.

ALVAN°

Alms'
ANDREONI

• 55 . 	That subject helped the Allies and the CLNAI is probably, true but
this is considered fortuitous (if it vine not actually cover for his work
for the Germans and Fascists) and should be entirely discounted.

56.	 Subject's attempt to get into touch with the British I.S. before the
war (see para 19) while he was employed as an agent of the Italian

. Ministries shows him up in a very bad light and it is likely that his
contacts and scheming in SWITtERLATO since the Italian armistice are just'
as dubious in their motives. He appears to have gambled and reinsured
himself very carefully so as to be as sure as possible of being on the
winning side.

Subject is accused by Ugo of claiming credit for obtaining the
release of a nuMber of anti-Fascists in which he was not even concerned
and that he then represented himself to the individuals concerned as
having obtained their or their relatives' release, on the strength of
which he received many large financial gifts. The fact of having
received so much money in this connection, however it is interpreted,
is very much against subject and shows him up in an unpleasant and
mercenary light. All cases in which subject claims to have helped
should be checked up with all the outside evidence available.

	

; 58.	 Subject, in the reports ho has written for 3C0 FSS, says much about
how succesurully he has deceived the Germans. It is considered likely
that he is trying to do the same thing with the Allies.

	

59.	 Soon after capture, sdbject gave a considerable amount of information
on the GIS (see SCI report 712/2698 of 20 Mar 45) but can now add nothing
to our knowledge. It is recommended therefore that his caw) be passed
to the Italian authorities for dispesal.

SECTION II . - PEI6ONALITIES 

LIST A -  MMC

Note: Below is an alphabetical list of all names mentioned in
the narrative, toether with the names of a number of other
persons with whom subject has had contact in the course of the
last twenty years. ;.btes on a few of them are given in List B.

ALBERTI	 SterMbannfuehrer. OC Aussenposten PARMA.
ALCESTE	 Questore Intelligence Officer MUTI Legion.

Alias PORCELLI (List B).
Prisoner awarded collective punishment by KLIMA
in SAN vrprva Prison, MILAN.
Officer of Italian IS in 1916.
Alias IENY2RI0 Sergio. Dissident Communist
who may have collaborated with Germans.

ANINAT	 Counsellor at Chilean 'Legation, VIMIlk, 1916.
ANTICCO	 Cat. Officer of SIN (List D).
APOLLDNIO	 Jewish informer of Germans. Appointed Head of

Secret Political Police (List El).
AREESANI	 Anti-Fascist in MILAN.

•



BIOCHIERAI Don
SIEBERT
BIREBECK
BOGNAR Anna, known as

Buchesaa DI SAN FELICE
BON

Uy114.1.1LRE:--
BORGHESE Prince 
BDRBETTI
BORRONE Prof.
BOSSHAWMER
BOS3I

BACHIPZIVEN
uut BALTUvri_

BALDACCI

BALLISTI

BANFI Count
BARD Fraeulein
BARNI OCCHINI
BARRACU
BASSI
BATTISTELLA Marianna
BAUER
HAMMERED:SR Franz .
RAM Fausto (Roberto)
BELFADEL
BEICIOIOSO Count
BELLAVITA
BELIOTTI

BERNASCONI
BEUER Herbert
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DOVE Brothers
BRAMBILLA
BRICCHETTO Bianca
BRIGGS Alan Lindsay
BUCHOLZ
BUFFARINI-GUIDI
BUONACCORSI

Lt. Ic Officer to SCHOLTZ in NAPLES.
Fascist infonner in GENEVA.
Foreign Ministry and Ministry of Interior expert
on ALBANIA.
Prefect of BRESCIA. Proposed as substitute
for FANOLINI.
Head of a group of informers under THUIL
Mistress of BAUER.
Foundor of ;,:ap/ (List B).
Fascist DepUblican Minister now dead.
Prefect of MILAN Oct 44 - Apr 45.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Capt. Now dead.
At Gruype Oberitalien West, MILAN.
Anti-Fascist in /ULAN.
Levantino meMber of Abwr I (M)..
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Capt. At anistry or Marino in 1923.
Major. Associated with D.d.6. Office,
VERONA (List D).
Head of Italian CB Office in TURIN and MILAN.
Hauptsturmfuehror. Gruppe Oboritalion West,
/ULAN.
Representative of Card. SC11.13TE1 inMILAN.
Head, of CZECH Police in 1919.
Cot
Informer of Germans (ex OVA) (List B).

Col. International Ned Cross.
French agent sest by EOBERG to WiliZERLAND.
OC 10 Doti-1141w._

-1a-fr.gascistT.RTIE6.
Anti-Fascist taMILAN.
Sturmbannfuehrcr p.a.s. Office, VERONA.
Major. Head of UPI, MILAN, later informer
of SAMEIT.
Pawnbrokers in NAPLES.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
U.S. Mil Attache in VIENNA 1916.
Major. Ex LYONS Ant, (List B).
Former Fascist Minister of the Interior.
Italian Consul in MINORCA 1936.

CAIRELLA alias Count
DI TOLEDO

CALVI Mionele
CANARIS
CANDIANI

CANEVARI alias Claire
MORRIS

CAPALBI ing.
CARCONELLI

CARLI
CAPIOTTI

it;?,..t..,,,et./(1‘.0.■CASAGRANDE---
CABANA 
CATTANE0
CATTANEO
CELIO
cualui
CHEMBULIEZ

SIN agent in SPAIN.

Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Admiral. Former Head of the Abwehr.
Commercial Attache at Roumanian Embassy VIUNA
1915.
On staff of "IOGIa FASCISTA" (List B).

Abw I (10 post-occupational agent, tONE.
Italian concerned with requisitioning for
Germans in
Sec; DE CAdII.
See EVLIGELISTI Virginia.
Met by subject LI SUMMAND.
Anti-Fascist in KILAA.
Anti-Fascist at MABLWICO.
Major.	 00 00.11: NIKES 1943.
Prefect of COMO.
Head of Police in N. ITALY after TAMDURINI.
Member of RUK, COMO,.in contact with PRAGER.

_



• CHURICI
CIANO Count
CIANO Edda
CICERI
CITTADINI
COCCO
COLOMBO

C003ELLA Don

CRISMAN
CRISP° MONCADA

D IANCELO Sigra
D'AQUARA, MEOLO

CARACCIOLOLUke
DE CARLI (or CARLI)
DE GASTON
DE GIACOMO Leonardo

=ITO Cardinal
DRUVEN (or VAN DONAM)
DUCHANCEL

LOST Franz and Mario

DEL SOLE
\ _ DEMETRIO Sergio

l‘st-rela""'OSA
DE SANTIS
DE STEFANO
DINGELDEY
ra TOLEDO Count
rculuat;
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Italian Chief of Police in 1943.
Former Faseist Minister.
Wife of above, now in SMTZEILAND.
Capt. C3M0 Black Bde.
Gen. ADC to ::ing of ITALY 1926.
Major. OC SIM/dS Section, NAPLES, .1943.
Col. OC AUTI Legion, MILAN.
Italima AO in SAN VITTORE Prison, MILAN.
Anti-Fascist.
Priest and ID between Cardinal SCHUSTER and
German Consulate in MILAN.
Italian Consul General in GENEVA.
Ithr; I collaborator.
Head of Italian Police 1926.

Jeweller in NAPLES.
Acquaintance of subject.

Maresciallo. Att Abx I.
Major.
MoMber of PUWalica Sicurezza who assisted anti-
Fascists in LULAN.
Abvehr informer.
See ANDRDONI.

SE1 representative in ZERNE.
Father and son. Anti-Fascists inliELAN.
Col. Collaborator of Germans in -Lima.
Capt. MUTI Legion, MILAN.
Capt. Abw III.
Bee CATREILA.
Standartenfuchrer. 10 between B.d.S. and
KESSELRENG.
Prelate in MILAN.
Dutch priest in contact with Germans (?).
Col. Former chief of Police at TUNIS who went
to MILAN (List B).
Masters of Aussen Kdo, AILAN. Connected with
Mops. MAL, pro-Nazi bishop in VATICAN.

ELMO kw.
EMANUELE
ENGEL
ENGELMANN
ESSICH
EVANGELIST' Virginia

(m. CARLOTTI)

FABIAN'
FACCHINI
FARINACCI
FENAROLI alias GLP,ALDI
FERRARI
PERIM
FERRIC°
FINZI (PETORELLA.

LALATA FIHZI)
FINZI
PIOREATINI
FONTANA
PORNARO
FOE VON DEHEIDE
FRANCIESCHVI
FRANCE'
FRANCO

Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Head of Sili/CS 1936.
Sturmbannfuchrer. OC Aussen Kdo, GENOA.
Col. CO Fuehrungsstelle
Member of Abw I (M).
Member of BALBO plot 1926.

Wester° BOLOGNA.
Anti-Fascist, MILAN.
Editor of 'REGIME FASCISTIO.
Anti-Fascist in ;Ewa.
Lt.	 Abw I (Loft).
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Italian i1 Attache BUCHAREST 1919.
Member of Italian 1.3. 1919.

Jew killed by ALCESTE.
Col. Ger:onn collabor:tor in Aiass4aam.
Gen. Head of UPI in 1930.
Anti-Fascist in ;ULAN.
Italian ant in 1916.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Judge.	 1936.
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GALVANI
GANBARDELLA

GASPAROTTO
GEBIJER
GILBAUD
=MANI

OIRALDI
GNOCCHI Don
GOEREL

GOLD
GOMEZ
GORIER'
GRAZIANI
GRINNI
GROSSI Attilio
GROSSI Enzo
GRUN alias GRINNI alias

Dr. :4ANZONI
GUENTHER

HAZDSCHUCH
HAKE
HARMER
HASS
HASS (Photographer)
HASSLINGER m. TAMARI
HEISNA.R
HmuPERICH
MOBERG
HOFER Franz
HUBER

HUDALMonsignoro
HUEGEL

IAVICOLI
IBNER

JAKOB'S alias GERLIER
JARSKO

KAGENECK Count
KAPPLER

,juuturz 
KAUTS-CH

KESSELRING
'CLAPS alias KLEIN
maws .
KLEMM Helmuth
Krum
KOCH Otto EUrt
ROOM Piero
KOEHLER

hONHADI VON EIFENAU
NORM (?)

IGIANIBITTER

MGIR organiser.
Introduced by sUbjeat to KAPPLER in ROME as LO
with Church.
Anti-Fascist shot by Germans in MILAN.
See JAMBS.
Member of DORIOT Group in MILAN (List B).
Head of Italian State Insurance Institute
1931.	 •
See FENAROLI.
Anti-Fascist priest inlIELAN.
Hsuptsturmfuchrer. MARMER's represontative
at FASANO.
Nauptsturmfuehrer. OC Aussen Kdo BOLOGNA.
Member of Brazilian Legation in VIENNA 1916.
Col. Member of EMI Legion.
Marshal. Fascist Minister of War.
See GRUN.
SD agent.
Fascist submarine oammander.
Jewish informer of Abt IV in VENICE (List B).

Brigadefuehrer. TRIESTE till Jan 45.

Col. 00 Abw III ITALY,
Norv• Rap. Abwohr III LA SPEZIA.
BrigadefUebrer. B.d.S.,VEINVL
SturabennfUehrer.

Informer of Germans In EAMES 1943.
Obersturmfuchrcr. Altman Xdo MILAN.
Col. OC Abw ITALY.
Obergrupponfuchror.	 In PARTS.
Gauleiter.
SturMbannfuehrer. HIUSTER I s LO with
mumaai (List 33).
Pro-Nazi member of the VATICAN.
SturMhannfuehror. 00 Abt VI VERONA.

Vice Head of Press Office ROME 1926.
Replaced KLAPS at VENICE.

Fleming serving with Ahw I (d).
At Abt IV, Aussen Kdo MILAN.

With LENZ of Si) at MONTE CARLO.
ObersturMbannfuohrer. LO between B.d.S. and
Italian SS and Police.
German agent in N. ITALY and SWITZEDLAND.
Capt. GAF paymaster met in NAPLES and
'ROME 1943.
F.i. 000 German Forces in ITALY until Apr 45.
'Cory. Rap.	 Abw I (H).
Hamptsturmfuohrer. Grenzbefehlostelle WHO.
Aussen RdO EMlii.
NCO i/c Gann= Wing SAN VITTORB Prison, num.
In Abt W, Ausson Kdo nusa.
Lt. Head of Police group in MILAN.
German LO between B.d.S. Office and 10 Flotilla
MAS.
Swiss volunteer with B.d.W. (?).
Capt. Ckauan officer serving with THUN in
ATLAN.
Sturmbannfuohrer. OC Abt IV VERONA.
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KRAUSE Eugen	 Hauptsturmfuohrer, In AUssen lalo MILAN.
IMBOCARR	 Eery. ::■ap. 2E3TO CALIMME.
mrazisa	 Informer of SBA, ROATTA and DOCCHINI just before

war.
KUNZECK	 Obersturmfuehrer. Jewish Archives GOSSLNSASS

(COME ISARCO).•

LANGNER	 AnssenpostenIW.XAMO.
LKNER Arv.	 Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
LENZ	 SD officer in FRANCE. Special comaand under

BERLIN (List B).
Anti-Fascist inikILAH.
Anti-Faseist inMLLAN.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Head of OVRA.•
Member of GIS (List .13).
Gorman in MUELLHAUSER s office. Friend of
HASS the photographer.

LONGHI	 Anti-Fascist priest in MILAN.
LUCIANO	 Major. frees and Propaganda Ministry ROM 1936.

MAGEK	 Croat politician 1919..
MALVI Count	 Assistant of THUN, head of group of informers.
MARNE=	 Gen. COG Italian-SS.
mamma Dr.	 See GRUN.
Margherita	 See WEINGERL.
MARINI	 Socialist oomected with SD and MITI (List B).
MARINOTTI	 Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
MASSIMO	 Anti-Vasoist in MILAN.
MAYER Dr.	 SD officer.
MAnli 3a4Y	 American Joint Distribution Committee, GENEVA.
MAYERS	 German officer of rinc COMO.
MEDA	 Anti-Fascist in MAN..
MEI	 German Consul at NAPLES in 1942.
MEIZHIARRI	 Anti-Fascist in MILAU.
AfRUJOLA	 Communist acquaintance of subject.
MENZEL BOOZCN	 CC German Navy in ITALY.(?).
"MIRTILIO"	 Officer of Abw I.
MODRINI	 BOOMMII's contact in VIeRNA 1926.
MONTAGNA	 Gen. Chief of Fascist Police since Oct 44.
MONTAGNA Bruno	 Anti-Fascist
MONTINI ggr..	 In VATICAN Foreign Ministry.
MORGANTE Sigra. 	 SAEWEKE's secretary and interpreter.
MORRIS Claire	 See CANEVARI.
MOSCHETTI	 Assistant to GILBAUD (List B).
MOSER	 Aussenposton PAVIA.
MUELLUUSER	 Head of Political Office, Gorman Dmbassy,

F4'..SANO.

LEONE Michele
LEONI Pietro
LEPETIT
LETO Guido Dr.
LEVINSEI Baron
LOBIL

O'FLAHERTY Father	 Priest in VATICAN.
ORLANDO Don 	 Priest. Acquaintance of subject at RDIEVsliTO.
ORSINI Prof.	 Anti-Fascist inMILAU.
ORTMANN	 Chancellor at German Consulate NAPLES.
OTTAVI Rene	 SD MARSEILLES.

PARANI	 Italian working with Abw I (M).
PARINI	 Former Prefect of 1.!ILAN.
PARRI Prof.	 Head of Partite d'Azione MAN.
PATERSON	 British officer arrestod in MILT.
PAVELIC Into	 Croat net in 1926.
PAVOLINI	 Secretarl of Fascist Republican Party.
PERIACCHIO	 Questore. Connected with TD1SFELD.
PEPE	 Comaiszario. MUTI LogionMILAN.

ii
// •



PERCEVIC
PERCIC
FEREGO
PIECHE
POLESTA
POPESCHI-MONTI Bioe
PORCEILT
PORTA
POETA Paolo
PRAGER
PFISTI
PREVALETZ
PREZIOSI
PRIEBRE
PRIMING
PUCCI Count

RAHN

RAINER

RLISOLI
Rafe
RASCEI
RAUFF

RECCIA
REMI
ROAM
ROTA Giovanni
RCTTA Osvaldo
RUE Larry

SAEWEKE

sATEru
SAN FELICE Luchossa
SANSEVERINLMarChosa
SANTAMARIA
SARKOVIC
SCHERILLD
scrum
SCHNEEWEISS
SCHOEFFMANN Hans
SCHOEN
SCHOENPFLUG

•SCHOLTZ

SCHOLTZ
SCHOMBURG
SCHRAM
SCHUH
suusrm Cardinal
SChIARZENBURG 
SCHWINGMNBBM
SCUTO alias SCHLi=
SEIDEL Helmuth
SENNER
SENNI
SEMI
SESSLER
SILVESTRI
SIVOLI Sgra
SONOINI
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Col. Croat met in 1926.
Croat met in 1926.
Anti-Fascist in MEAN.
Gen. Ex Head of SIM/CS.
Informer of Germans at GALLARATE.
Mistress of subjeot and later of BOCONINI,
Sec ALCESTE.
Anti-Fascist in MAN.
Foderale of COMO.
German agont at COND.
Col. Collaborator with Germans.
Croat mot in 1919.
Fascist Minister of Race.
Hauptsturmfuehrer. BRESCIA.
Attache at German EMbassy, FASAND.
Laver of Edda CIANO. Probable SD agent.

German AMbassador to Italian Fascist Republic
at FASANO.
Oborsturmfuchror. Gruppe Oberitalien West
MILAN.
Col, Collaborator of Germans (List B).
Gen. GOC 2 German Para. Div.
Capt. Assistant to ENGELMANN.
Standartenfuehrer. OC Gruppe Oberitalien West
MILAN (List B).
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Capt Abw II MILAN.
Member of TURIN UPI.
Collaborator with GIS (List B).
Informer of Sipo u. SD.
Corraspondent of "CHICAGO TRIBUNE" 1926.

Hauptstureuchrer. OC Aussen Edo MILAN
(List 11).
Vice Commissario, CODD.
See BOAR Anna.
Informer of Germans.
Protege of RAUFF.
Croat met in 1926.
Anti-Fascist in MEAN.
See SCUTO.
Major.
HauptscharfUohrcr. In Abt IV Alms= Me MILAN. .
Capt. OM Grenzpassiorscheinstelle.
Hauptstureuchror. Abt VI man.
Major? Town Major NAPLES after Italian
Armistioe.
German Consul in TURIN.
LO with 10 Flotilla MAS at SESTO CALENDS (List B).
WO i/c Review "AVANGUARDIA".
Untersturauchror Aussenposten at BIELLA.
Archbishop of MILAN.
Member of Intornational Red Cross in GENEVA.
SturMbannfuehrer. 2 i/e to ICRANEBITTER.
Sicilian living at COMO. Gorman agent.
0/FW. , With Abt IV/III/F, MILAN.
Oborsturtfuchrer. From SAN REMO (List E).
Ex Italian Abbassador.
Son of last named. 	 SD agent.
Abw I (M) officer.
Friend of RAUFF.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Italian Foreign Minister 1919.
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SPADAFORAMUzio Prince
SDADONI
STAMM

STANGHELLINI
STARACE
STEFANInum Nano and Gustavo
STEPANEK
STIRCER Traiano
SZACKJOsip
TALAMO
TALLER
TALLERI
=BURIN'
TANCARI Sigra
TARANTINO (TOLENTINO ?
TENSPELD
TESTA

THUN VON Ii0IIKTSTEIN
TIMM

TIPP

TITO

TOUSSAINT
Tie= Fridolin
TRINCA
TRINCHERO
TROIANI

- TUOCI	 •
TUROWSKI Ernst

"UGO"

VALENTI . Osvaldo
VAWITINO Boron
VALOBRA

•VANUOCHI Dante
VEMIGONI Carlo

- VERDE Signorina

VEZZANI Lag.
VIGORCLLI
VISCOMI DI mom=

Prince
VOGEL
VOGHERA Ountessa di
VON HALEM
VON STEGEN Baron
VON WEISNER Baron
VOETTERE

WEIMANN
WEINGERL Marghorita
WEISER Rolf Guenther
WEI7RAECKER
WENIEL
WENNER
WERNER

Anti-Fascist in MILAN..
2. VC of MUTI region MILAN.
Capt. i TENSFELB's LO with KRUNIIHAE: at SESTO-
CALENIEC.
One of the founders of the MGIR.
Former Socrotary of Fascist Party.
Head of.I.MIL .
Anti-Fascists in MAN.
Czech independent 1919.
Roumanian Mil Attache VIENNA 1915.
Hungarian Press Attache WEE 1928.
Lt-Col. Officer of SDI (decoased).
Major.	 .:ECIEMONA..
Anti-Fascist in MILAN. •
Former Head of Fascist Republican Police.
Soo HABSIMIGLT4
Viotim of AIPESTE.
Polizeifuehrer. MONZA.
Prefetto at Ministry of Interior in N. ITALY.
Contact of TOLIANH.
Capt. OC GE Office MILAN.
SS Oberscharfuehror. Wit operator Aussen Kdo
MILAN
Judge of German Military Tribunal corrupted by
subject.
Untersturmfuehrer. OC GRIDS (BOLZINO)
Concentration Camp.
Gen. Former GOC Territorial Forces in ITALY.
ROBT's mistress (List B).	 .
AeMber of Piero =a's group.
Agent of Abw Edo 190 (List B).
Col. Italian War Ministry 1921.
Head of COMO Fascio.
Sturmbannfuehrer. 00 Abt III, B. d.8. Office
VERONA. .
Head of police group under SAEWEO.

German oollaborator.
,Press Dept., Italian Foreign Office 1924.
President of the Jewish Italian Committee,
GENEVA.
Friend of LENZ BALZER and TAMBURINI. •
Anti-Fascist
Nistrcss of ROTA (m. Mal).
Meth= of Italian Consulate General, GENEVA. .
Czech Independent 1919.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
Informer of MUTI Legion.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.

Grenibefehlsstelle, map.
Anti-Fascist in MILAN.
German Consul in MILAN till Dec 44.
CallIC to ITALY from FRANCE with LENZ.
Not in VIGKNA in 1928.
Hauptsturofuehrer. Grenzbefehlostelle, COMO.

Obersturnbarmfuehrer. Predecessor of GUENTHER.
Informer of SD at MILAN (List B).
German it in ROM 1943.
German Ambassador to Holy Soo.
Soo VERDE.
Sturmbanrniehrer.
Capt. Lk Abwehr from FILNCE.
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Ausson Kdo	 ILAN.
Standartenfuehrer. Gen. WOLFF's Chief of
Staff.

WOERLER	 Lt. Abw I (M) (List B).
WOLFF	 Boechite Poliscifuchrer und Genoral der

Warren SS in Italien.
WOLFF	 German Consul at IIAN after Von HALMS.
.WOIFF	 Bauptsturmfuehrer. B.d.S. Office VERONA.
WOLFF	 German at CAMPIONE.
WURSTER	 German Consul NAPLES 1943.

ZEN (or ZEMN)	 Collaborator of BAUER (List B).
ZEMIN°	 Fascist Republican Minister.
ZIMMER	 Oberstermfuchrer. GrUPDP Oberitalien.Nest, MILAN.
ZOLIOMI	 Germanaaent MILAN (List B).

LIST B

MUD:INBORN
WIT.T

AIZESTE

ANTICCO

APOLLONIO

SARNI OCCKENI

BEIZOTTI Luigi (?)

Questore of MUTI Legion "I° Office. Responsible
for death of a Jew called FINZI and took 1,200,000
lire from FINZI l s house. ALCESTE acted as
informer also to SAEWRKE.

Capt. Formerly of SIM (Espionage). Worked for
SIM in FRANCE and in TUNISIA. 'jos said to have
been arrested by Preach in TUNISIA and imprisoned
for 8 months in 1935. Was inIELLAN in Feb 45.

A Jaw who was appointed bead of the OM
(called Ispettorati Speciali since 25 Jul 43)
when LETO was appointed Bead of Fascist Police.
AIOLIJAIO was arrosted on MUSSOLLNI's orders
at the some time as TA14.1URIVI.

Founder of MGM. Connected with WELLOT'fI,
scum, GAINAJI. MGIR supported by Germans
in its criticism of Fascist Party.

SturmbannfUchrer of Italian SS attached to
B.d.S., VERONA.
Italian.
Pupil of PREZIOSI and follower and protege of
CANEVARI Emilio whom he accompanied to BERL311
after 8 Sep 43 when CANEVARI discussed with
KEITEL the reorganisation of the Republican
Fascist Army. On return to ITALY, BELLOTTI
edited the review "AVANGUARDIA" which was
controlled by SS Obcrsturmfuchror (?) SaHRAbfhl
and was subsidised by the SS.
BELDOTTI went to EMILIO in Dec 44 and saw STEIMLE
and KALTEMP.UNNER at the RSHA in connection with
Italian 58 affairs. Suggested to STEIMIE that
he should go on a mission to SW1T=2LAND which
was agreed to, but on his return, RAUFF would
not give him permission to leave ITALY.
DELLOTTI was asLed by RAIFF in this connection
his opinion as to subject's suitability ason
Si) agent in SWITZLILADD and %MATTI stated
that be thought subject was reliable.
Strong supporter of wawa of MGIR and always
took STENCI's side with HARWER and introduced
STLTANI to HOMEY! in the first ”lace. Did
not get on with WKIRE.4 Was removed by Gen.
WOLFF from his position as Editor of "AVM-
GUARDIA" in about Aug 44 after which his exact
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position vas not clear to subject. Recently
wore civilian clothes instead of SS uniform
as before.

BOAR Anna (married ?) Former OVRA informer of DOCCHINI. Informer
Luchessa di =TIM= in MTLAN in relations with FUER, KAPPLIIIR,

;OEHLER and SARISII and said to be possibly in
love with some or all of then; regarded as "odd".	 ; •
Of Hungarian origin; age about 40.	 . •
About 1.6On toll; plump build; bronze dyed hair;
light colourod eyes; very thin scarcely visible
scar which runa from one car to the other under
nose.

BUCIDLZ

G1123AUD

Major.	 list (?) LYONS. Caine to ITALY after
Allied invasion of FRANCE.
German; age about 40.
About 1.90m tall; very thin build; black hair;
brown eyes; very dark complexion; cleanshaven;
wore spectacles' striking un-Gcrman appearance.
Sent away from;UIAN by RAUFF to GERMANY.
Returned for a few days to VYRONA. about end •

Oct 44.

Writer of articles in "FXCIEE FASCISTA" under
nano of Claire MORRIS.
Creature of FARI:ACCI.
Italian.
Enapy of DAECGLIO and supporter of Itslo-German
alliance. Friead of DDLLOTTI whom he took to
BERLIN after 6 Sop 43 in order to discuss
reorganisation of Ilepublicon Fascist Army with
hEITEL. Was at loggerheads with GRAZIANI. Was

appointed OC Italian 63 at aroma. in order to be
near FiallNACCI and given rank of Lt-Gen about
Jan 44. Was arrested about May 44. According
to HARSTER, this was because ciaa-wia had said
in public that Gen WOLFF was ecratinaand that
RAlifinas both a'bretinp and a cuckold. After
arrest he was placed in restricted residence
on IcJas GARDA. His place was takon by Major-
GenAUdIMULI.

Col. Former Chief of Police in TUNIS when
RAUB? was there. Cams to }MAN after Allied
occupation of TUNISIA.
French; age about 40.
About 1.70m toll; medium build; black hair going
grey; dark complexion; small moustache.
Strong Vichyite.. Acquaintance of GILBAUD.
Went to SWaMMUAND in about Nov 44 and did not
return. Roason for going to SIUTZERLAND not
known. Was in contact with Gorman Consul in
MILAN.

Member of DORM' Group and 3D agent (?).
FETAIll's representative in ITALY (RAHN, .11A1JFF,
WOLFF and HAOSTDR) after Allied invasion of
Iriuuco.
French; age about 35.
About 1,62m tall; medium build; thin brown hair;
small eyes and worespectacles; cleanshaven;
rather oriental expression.
Visited FASANO and MIL4r. and was preparing a
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French consulate in Corso VILMZIA assisted
by HOSIGSETTI.

GRUN alias GRIAZ alias A Jew who acted as informer for the Jewish
Dr. MANZONI	 section of Abt IV. Violently anti-somitic.

Denounced 300 Jaws in Mal= and boasted of
denouncing an average of one Jaw every day in
MILAN.

HUB:ER	 Stubaf. ificasnm , B Lc) with HELIK;itICH. May
have boon dismissed and punished for somo misdeed.

LENZ	 OC of Sondorkdo in FRANCE under RSHA who cam to
ITALY after Allied invasion.
Gorman; ago about 35.
About 1.70m tall; fair reddish hair; grey eyes;
fresh oomplexion; small fair moustache. Wife
and two children. Spoke Italian, French and
English. Slavonic appearance.
Sont by RAUFF in Oct 44 to SIMULDOMI where he
had contact with French. Paid periorlieal
visits to N. ITALY and MILAN. Associated with
Count KAGENECK and Baron VON SrMEN and BUCHOLZ
in PRANCE.

LEVINSKI Baron

MARINI

MOSCHETTI

RAISOLI

RAF Walter

Gorman reproc.entative of GernanMinistry of
Marine at Republican Fascist Ministry of Marine.
Had offices at TRISSBO, VICENZA.. •

Socialist who tried to come to terms with the
MUTI Icgion (COLOMBO and GORIERI) and was in
contact with ZOLYOMY (q.v.). Not lalown
personally to subject.

Vichy propaganda officer and worimd on behalf
of Marcel HEAT. Was in contact with GILBAUD.

" French; age about 40.
About 1.65m tall; medium build; thin black hair;
shortsighted and wore spectacles; pale complexion;
small moustache. Spoke some Italian.
Came to ITALY with 20 or 30 refugeos from F1UNCE
after Alliod invasion, after which he got into
contact with mum) whose right hand he beoame.

Col. Would make himself out to be an anti-
Fascist but was in contact with Prefect of COMO.
(formerly ASTI) and with ZaIBINO (Minister).
RAISOLI remarked that he had 19,000 men in
PIELHONT who would stop any insurrection in TURIN.

Standartenfuehrer. Was in TUNISIA as head of
Police with rank of Obersturzbannfuehrer, till about
Mar 43 with RAHN who was Resident.
Went via NAPLES to OORSICA in 1943 who 	 he
escaped and went to GERMANY.
Come to ITALY (MILAN) 15 Sep 43 to become OC Gruppe
Oberitalien West,MMAN.Promoted Standarten-
fuchrer spring 44.
Very meticulous but sometimes generous.
Suspicious but expansive at the same time and
subject to moods. Loyal party member. Has
no money or property of his own. Of middle
class origin. (Now em).



ROTA Giovanni

SAEVEXE Theodor

SCHOMBURG

SENNER

TRINCKERO

WE1NGERL . Margherita
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Salvage contractor in GENOA. Introduced by
sUb:Act to MAPS in ROME. Obtained salvage
contract from Gerymuls in GENOA for 18,000,000
lire. In close contact with Baron LEVINSKI
for whom he acted as manager. Carried out
anti-Partisan police activities in TUSCANY and
made many arrests. Friend of CAPALBI. Worked
with DMELDDY in VENICE. Convinced.. Fascist.

Hauptstureuehrer. EX Merchant Marine. From
HAMBURG. OC Abt ry loado. Ex Criminal Police
Commissar.
Honest and would not accept bribes. RigLimember
of Party. Not over intelligent. Was with
RAUFF in TUNISIA. Fully aware of methods of
violence used by his subordinates and by Italian
police working under, and in liaison with, him.
Now P/W.

German who had some position as ID between 10
Flotilla MAS at SESTO CALLUDE and the Marine
Departront of RISK. Connected with Ritter VON
GEORG of Naval RUE.

Ostuf. From SAN REMO.
German; ago about 37.
About 1.60m tall; medium build, curly dark (?)
hair; grey eyes; more pince nez; cleanshaven.
Nothing of the officer in him.
Visited MILAN in Dec 44 where he was pointed
out to subject in Ristorante FIRENZE with a
group of 3 or 4 Corsicans. Was interested in
espionage in FRANCE and CORSICA. Caine into
conflict with SESSLER in autumn 1944 (details
not known). Kept very much in background and
was regarded as mysterious. Knows VANNUCCHI.
(Now P/W).

DAUFF's mistress. Had room 236 in Aibergo
MILANO at 100 lire a day paid for by sUbjeot
for 5 months until Feb 45. Possessed no
jewellery or finery beyond a gold ring which
came from "Margherita" (Vanual.) and a fur
given her by subject's mistress.

Agent of BAUSR of Aburkdo 190; Until Feb 45
lived in Via MONIYELEONE, iaLkii. Has a property
in PIEDMONT. Information about him can be
obtained from actress called MARESCA.

Owner of a jewellers office and workshop called
"MARDH&RITA" and mac jewellery for the highest
circles in MILAN. Came into contact with Gen
WOLFF who ordered a nuMber of its,ms of jewellery
from her. Her office in Via ANDEGARI 13 was
bombed in Aug 44. She took refuge in VASE.
Viennese; age about 45.
About 1.80m tall; fat; brown hair; brown (?)
eyes; sallow complexion; plebeian appuarance;
pear-shaped hood; very ugly; walks with diffi-
culty with help of a stick; very crafty and
cunning. Well known figure in MILAN and
very rich. Said to be a Lesbian. May have
been given a mission by SD but no details
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known. Said to be one of WOLFF's principal
contacts. Avoided by RAUFF.

Lt. Former consular attache at STOCKHOLM
and BUCHAREST. Was recalled to Navy and then
posted to Abw I 04). Accompanied KLAPS to
LA SPEZIA when he was replaced by SESSM
about Mar 44. He then went toMARSE7TSMS.

Agent of DAUER of Abvkdo 190. ZEN's brother-
in-law runs the Ristorante BARU WORD near
the Alborg° MILANO.

SD agent and nether of Dissident Communist
Movement of doubtful allegiance.
Left HUNGARY to avoid military service. Was
in ROME before Italian armistice where, as
swimming instructor, he was employed by various
Fascist Youth Centres. Sc was also employed
by Silt in ROME and worked for Col TALKM0who
after a time, passed him on to NAPLES under Major
COCCO where subject first met him in a cafe.
While working for Sill in ROME, about the time
of the entry of the U.S.A. into the war,
MLYOMY had-become on very good terms with two
or three officers of the U.S. Navel Attache's
Office in HOKE and be reported to SIM his
discovery through this moans of a U.S. espionage
affair which led to the arrest of certain Polish
subjects, muong whom a husband and wife were
condemned to 20 years imprisonment. ZDLYOMY
told subject that while the American officers
were confined to the Aibergo FLORA (?) awaiting
their safe-conduct after America's declaration
of war, he out them on several occasions by
secret appointment in the Hotel while, unknown
to them, he was working on behalf of SIM. Ho
was thus able to obtain information from them
about a nudbor of American agents.
Not long after subject's arrival in MILAN,
ZOLMEC appeared there and, since he was without
money, he asked aubject to introduce him to the
Germans and subject accordingly introduced him
to MUFF. When Edila QIANO fled to SWITZERLAND,
her lover, Count PUCCI, was arrested and
VaLIDITI was put in PUCCI's cell for a night in
order to find out what he could.
After this, subject believes that ZOLYOMY was
not used for some time until he was taken on
by ZIKtElt.
Later, RAIFF told subject that he had had
ZOLIWY imprisoned for a month because he
suspected him of playing a double gene.
ZOLYOMY was still later in contact with MARINI
whom subject describes as a Socialist (not
Communist) and one of a group who tried to come
to terms with the MUTI Logien.
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